
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 AGENDA 
 

Port of Kennewick  
Regular Commission Business Meeting 

Port of Kennewick Commission Chambers and via GoToMeeting 
350 Clover Island Drive, Suite 200, Kennewick Washington 

 
September 23, 2025 

2:00 p.m. 
 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ROLL CALL  
 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please state your name and address for the public record) 
 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Approval of Direct Deposit and ePayments August 17, 2025 
B. Approval of Warrant Register Dated September 23, 2025 
C. Approval of Regular Commission Meeting Minutes September 9, 2025 

 
VI. REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Vista Field (TIM) 
B. Commission Meetings Schedule (BRIDGETTE) 
C. CEO Report (if needed)  
D. Commission Meetings (formal and informal meetings with groups or individuals) 
E. Non-Scheduled Items 

(LISA/BRIDGETTE/TANA/NICK/AMBER/LARRY/MICHAEL/DAVID/CAROLYN/TIM/KEN/TOM/SKIP) 
 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please state your name and address for the public record) 
 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

PLEASE SILENCE ALL NOISE MAKING DEVICES 

To continue to provide public access to meetings, Port of Kennewick will provide telephonic,  
video access,  

and in-person participation options to the public. 
 

To participate by telephone, please call in at: 1-877-309-2073, Access Code: 651-388-277 
Or, join on-line at the following link: https://meet.goto.com/651388277 

https://meet.goto.com/651388277


PORT OF KENNEWICK 
REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 

    
      
  DRAFT   SEPTEMBER 9, 2025 MINUTES 
   

Page 1 of 5 

Commission Meeting recordings, with agenda items linked to corresponding audio, can be found on the 
Port’s website at:  https://www.portofkennewick.org/commission-meetings-audio/ 
 
Commission President Skip Novakovich called the Regular Commission Meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. 
  

ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ROLL CALL 
 
The following were present: 
 
Board Members: Skip Novakovich, President    
 Kenneth Hohenberg, Vice President     
 Thomas Moak, Secretary   
   
Staff Members: Tim Arntzen, Chief Executive Officer 
 Tana Bader Inglima, Deputy Chief Executive Officer 
 Nick Kooiker, CFO/Deputy Chief Executive Officer (via telephone) 
 Larry Peterson, Director of Planning   
 Amber Hanchette, Director of Real Estate  
 Michael Boehnke, Director of Operations   
 Bridgette Scott, Executive Assistant (via telephone)  
 Lisa Schumacher, Special Projects Coordinator   
 David Phongsa, Marketing/Capital Projects Coordinator    
 Carolyn Lake, Port Counsel (via telephone) 
   
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
Mr. Phongsa led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT   
No comments were made.   
 
CONSENT AGENDA       

A. Approval of Direct Deposit and E-Payments Dated August 29, 2025 
Direct Deposit and E-Payments totaling $107,276.17 

B. Approval of Warrant Register Dated September 9, 2025 
Expense Fund Voucher Number 107257 through 107289 for a grand total of $230,340.28 

C. Approval of Regular Commission Meeting Minutes August 26, 2025 
D. Approval to Sell and Convey Surplus Property: Resolution 2025-16 

 
MOTION:  Commissioner Hohenberg moved to approve the Consent Agenda as amended;  
Commissioner Moak seconded.  With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously.  All in favor 
3:0. 
 
 

https://www.portofkennewick.org/commission-meetings-audio/


PORT OF KENNEWICK   SEPTEMBER 9, 2025 MINUTES 
REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  
 

 Page 2 of 5 

 

REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS    
A. Gunderson Rail Services LC dba Greenbrier Rail Services – Asphalt Project 

Ms. Hanchette presented photos of the completed Greenbrier Rail asphalt project (Exhibit A). 
 

B. Vista Field 
Mr. Arntzen reported on the status of Vista Field PFAS testing and advised Commissioners that 
Landau’s contract had been amended to accommodate additional soil samples. Mr. Arntzen 
indicated that a more detailed report and perhaps Landau’s full assessment would be available to 
Commission at the September 23rd meeting. That amendment with Landau added $29,000 to their 
contract, which Mr. Arntzen approved to expedite the additional testing per the Commission’s 
direction.  Mr. Arntzen requested the Commission ratify the amendment.  
 
Mr. Kooiker confirmed that the action was consistent with Mr. Arntzen’s delegation of authority, 
and stated with the two amendments, the total contract is $223,000.  Mr. Kooiker stated the 
delegation of authority allows Mr. Arntzen to approve contracts up to $200,000 and individual 
amendments less than $100,000.   
 
Commissioner Moak believes the Commission should ratify that action for the record.  
 

MOTION:  Commissioner Moak moved to ratify the payment of $29,000 to Landau Associates for 
additional environmental work;  Commissioner Hohenberg seconded.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None. 

 
Commission Discussion: 
 

Commission Hohenberg appreciates the report and even though it is frustrating that the Port needs 
to spend money to move forward to make Vista Field better, but the process and due diligence are 
important.  Again, this is no surprise, and we knew it was going to cost us some money to get where 
we needed to be.  Commission Hohenberg fully supports this and appreciates transparency through 
the process and thinks that it is of the utmost importance, especially when it comes to the public.   
 
Commissioner Novakovich echoes Commissioner Hohenberg’s comments and stated transparency 
is critical, and Mr. Arntzen has brought this forward to the public and the fact that the Commission 
is going to ratify the action probably protects the CEO. 
 

With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously.  All in favor 3:0. 
 
Mr. Peterson presented design photos for Daybreak Commons, which includes a flat surface for a 
potential seasonal ice rink (Exhibit B).  Mr. Peterson inquired if the Commission has a preference 
regarding the design direction and the new amenity for Daybreak Commons. 
 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   SEPTEMBER 9, 2025 MINUTES 
REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  
 

 Page 3 of 5 

 

Commissioner Moak likes the idea of the ice rink at Vista Field; however, he believes it should be 
placed in a different area and prefers option #1 with the landscaping.     
 
Commissioner Hohenberg likes the ice rink and believes it is an opportunity for Daybreak 
Commons to be used all year around.  Commission Hohenberg understands the addition will be 
more money and prefers option #2 with the concrete pad for the ice rink.  
 
Commissioner Novakovich agrees with Commissioner Hohenberg’s comments and prefers  
option #2. 
 
Commission and staff discussed the possible budget and grants, and project alternatives.  
 
Mr. Arntzen stated one of the 2025 established goals is to have the plans for Daybreak Commons 
drawn, and proposed bringing back a final draft next month for Commission discussion and 
consideration.  Once the plans are approved, the Commission and staff can review the budget and 
additional amenities for the project.   
 

C. Kennewick Waterfront Update 
1. La Bahia Grand Opening 

Mr. Phongsa reported that the grand opening/ribbon cutting for La Bahia food truck at 
Columbia Gardens is at 11:00 am on Friday, September 12, 2025 (Exhibit C). 
 

2. Columbia Gardens – EHB 1602 – Contract kitchen options for domestic breweries and 
microbreweries 
Ms. Hanchette has been working with a potential local brewery for vacant space at Columbia 
Gardens.  They are a family-friendly business that would like the food trucks to provide the 
food service.  However, the liquor control board has its own specific regulations and does 
not allow people under 21 to be in a brewery.  Recently, Engrossed House Bill 1602  
(Exhibit D) allows for domestic breweries or microbreweries to subcontract with one or more 
individuals or entities, including mobile food trucks, to satisfy food service requirements 
necessary to obtain and maintain a beer and/or wine restaurant license or a spirits, beer, and 
wine license.  The Food Truck Plaza is the perfect setup for businesses; however, EHB 1602, 
which went into effect July 27, 2025, has specific proximity requirements.  They are currently 
taking public comments through October 17, 2025.  Ms. Hanchette inquired if the 
Commission would like staff to get involved and advocate for Columbia Gardens to be part 
of the process.  
 
Ms. Bader Inglima believes the Bill is about defining the overall facility and vending through 
a vendor.  The Port has a different situation than when EHB 1602 was put together, and 
through our legislative contacts, would like them to consider contracting with food vendors 
and keeping liquor separate.  Ms. Bader Inglima believes there is an opportunity to advocate 
for the food truck plaza and potentially make it easier for our tenants and bring in more 
development.  
 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   SEPTEMBER 9, 2025 MINUTES 
REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  
 

 Page 4 of 5 

 

The Commission would like staff to move forward and advocate for the food truck vendors. 
 

3. KIE Land Swap Update 
Mr. Boehnke reported that Boyd’s Tree Service is under contract to remove the trees and 
stumps near the KIE property, and once completed, the fence installation will take place.   
 

4. Marina Update 
Mr. Boehnke and Ms. Yates recently toured the Hagadone Marine Group in Coeur d’Alene.  
Hagadone Marine has three full-service marinas with over 100 employees (Exhibit E).  After 
the tour, Mr. Arntzen joined them the next day to meet with Rady’s Electric, the company 
that works with Hagadone on their electrolysis analysis.  Rady’s agreed to come down to 
evaluate and inspect the Clover Island Marina on September 25, 2025, and offer suggestions 
on implementing procedures and preventative maintenance going forward.  Mr. Boehnke 
hopes to make this an annual inspection.  
 
Mr. Arntzen stated he believes Rady’s is very capable of performing the electrolysis analysis 
and he is very appreciative that they can come down and assist us. 
 
Additionally, Mr. Boehnke, Ms. Yates and Mr. Arntzen toured the Scale House Market at 
the Quarry, in Spokane Valley.  The Scale House Market is a former rock quarry that was 
rehabbed by the Spokane Conservation District and offers indoor and outdoor vendors, and 
scheduled events.   
 

D. CEO Report 
Mr. Arntzen reported on the following:   

• In the past, the Commission has cancelled the Commission Meeting on the week of 
Thanksgiving; and the November 11, 2025 Commission Meeting is scheduled on Veteran’s 
Day.  Staff requested the Commission consider the November schedule and possibly 
schedule a Special Commission Meeting on Wednesday, November 12, 2025.     

• Washington Public Ports Association Annual Meeting will be held on November 19, 2025, 
in Tacoma. Please let Ms. Scott know if you are interested in attending.    
 

E. Commissioner Meetings (formal and informal meetings with groups or individuals) 
Commissioners reported on their respective committee meetings.  
 

F. Non-Scheduled Items   
Ms. Bader Inglima congratulated Mr. Arntzen on his 23rd anniversary at the Port. 
 
Commissioner Hohenberg thanked Mr. Boehnke for his report on the Coeur d’Alene Marina and 
offered kudos to the maintenance crew for keeping Clover Island looking great.   
 

  



PORT OF KENNEWICK   SEPTEMBER 9, 2025 MINUTES 
REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  
 

 Page 5 of 5 

 

Commissioner Moak stated the WPPA also holds the New Commission Seminar prior to the 
Annual Conference and believes it is a great time for staff to interact with the new commissioner.  
 
Mr. Arntzen stated that is correct and it is a great opportunity for the new commissioner. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS   
No comments were made.  
 
COMMISSION COMMENTS   
No comments were made. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  

With no further business to bring before the Board; the meeting was adjourned at 3:23 p.m.  
 
 
APPROVED: PORT of KENNEWICK 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 
  

      
 
Skip Novakovich, President 
 
 
 
 

       
 
Kenneth Hohenberg, Vice President 
 

 
 

 
      

  
Thomas Moak, Secretary 

 



PORT OF KENNEWICK 
 

RESOLUTION 2025-16 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE  
PORT OF KENNEWICK AUTHORIZING THE  

PORT CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  
TO SELL AND CONVEY SURPLUS PROPERTY  

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kennewick met this 9th day of September, 

2025, a quorum of the Commissioners being present; and 
 

WHEREAS, from time to time it is necessary to surplus items no longer needed for Port District 
purposes; and 
 

WHEREAS, RCW 53.08.090 provides that the Port Commissioners may authorize the Port Chief 
Executive Officer to sell and convey surplus property; and 

 
WHEREAS, prior to each such disposition of Port property, the Port Chief Executive Officer is directed 

to present to the Commission an itemized list of the property and to make written certification that the listed 
property is no longer needed for Port District purposes.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Port of Kennewick Commissioners authorize the Chief 

Executive Officer to surplus Port property no longer needed for Port purposes as attached in “Exhibit A”. 
 

ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of Port of Kennewick this 9th day of September 2025. 
  

PORT of KENNEWICK 
         BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

By:_________________________________ 
 
SKIP NOVAKOVICH, President 
 
 
By:_________________________________ 
 
 
KENNETH HOHENBERG, Vice President 
 
 
By:_________________________________ 

 
THOMAS MOAK, Secretary 

 
 
 
 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 6197D96B-A07F-422D-B908-53D1F41099A2



 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2025-16 
 

“Exhibit A” 
 

 
 
 

CFO/Auditor Certification:   _____________________________________ 
    Nick Kooiker   Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 6197D96B-A07F-422D-B908-53D1F41099A2

9/9/2025



Greenbrier Rail Service
Asphalt Project – Before & After August 2025

EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT B



EXHIBIT C



HB1602 RULEMAKING COMMENTS
EXHIBIT D



OUTDOOR PATIO SPACE – WATER SIDE

EXHIBIT D



HB1602 RULEMAKING COMMENTS
EXHIBIT D



EXHIBIT D



• Visit to Hagadone Marina with Troy Maintenance Manager
• Meet with Electrician to talk about electrolysis

EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



Sizzler, the Idaho Hot Rod
60ft flush-deck speedster – 
all cold-moulded wood and 
carbon fiber construction. 
Designer Tony Castro.

EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



EXHIBIT E



THANK YOU

EXHIBIT E


	Exhibit A Greenbrier.pdf
	Greenbrier Rail Service
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6

	Exhibit B DBC.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3

	Exhibit D columbia gardens.pdf
	HB1602 Rulemaking Comments
	Outdoor patio space – water side
	HB1602 Rulemaking Comments

	Exhibit E CDA Marina.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Sizzler, the Idaho Hot Rod�60ft flush-deck speedster – all cold-moulded wood and carbon fiber construction. Designer Tony Castro.
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Slide Number 26
	Slide Number 27
	THANK YOU




